
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Polk County 
Planning Commission 

April 22, 2016 
 

Call to Order:  9:00 A.M. 
 
Members in Attendance:  Mike Powers, Donovan Wright, Robert Franks, Rolland Gagner,
 Courtney Pulkrabek, Paul Jore, Wayne Melbye, Arlet Phillips, and Don Diedrich, Dennis  
 Yell and Len Vonasek. 

 
Members Absent:   None 
 
Also Present:  Polk County Environmental Services’ staff: Josh Holte & Aly Bergstrom. 
 
Minutes:  A motion was made to approve the Planning Commission minutes from March 25, 
2016 with the addition of Rolland Gagner in attendance by Pulkrabek.  Second by Gagner.  All 
in favor. 
 
Public Hearing: CUP       Viking Gas Transmission Company Parcel #64.00080.00 
 
Powers read the notice, waiving the full legal description, and turned the hearing over to Holte. 
 
Holte stated that the applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct a public 
utility structure in the agricultural district in Section 25 of Scandia Township.  
 
Holte read the PCZO Sections 12.6200 through 12.6205 that pertain to this request. 
  
Holte went over the pertinent facts and stated that the property is currently 160 acres, but will be
 split into a 1.5 acre parcel if the CUP is approved.  The applicant has submitted 
 supplemental information with routes and details of the proposed station.  Viking Gas 
 Transmission Company has entered into a business agreement with Greater MN Gas to 
 supply them with guaranteed volumes of natural gas.  Purchasing the two new meter sites 
 is part of that business agreement.   
 
 
 



Holte stated that the two sites will provide Viking Gas with two sites to transfer custody of gas 
 from Viking Gas to Greater MN Gas.  From there, Greater MN Gas will provide natural 
 gas to its customers that will feed Beltrami, Fertile, and Red Lake Falls. Viking Gas 
 Transmission Company has agreed upon purchase agreements in place to acquire a 1.5  
 acre parcel for the meter station.  The Greater MN Gas routes have already been 
 established using the road right of way utility corridor.  The routes were received from 
 Greater MN Gas.  No CUP is required for the installation of new lines.   
 
Holte stated that the proposed station will be placed along the applicant’s existing natural gas 
 line.  This site will have one building to house instruments that meter gas flow to Greater 
 MN Gas and customers.  There will be above-ground piping and a power pole to provide 
 electricity.  This station will be the start of a line that will be installed to provide natural 
 gas service for the communities of Beltrami and Fertile.  0.27 acres of the 1.5 acre parcel 
 will be fenced off with an eight to ten foot security fence and locked gate.  The plan is to 
 minimize the footprint and allow farming operations on the remainder of the 1.5 acre 
 property.  
 
Holte said that Richard Sanders, County Highway Engineer, stated that he has no concerns with 
 the proposed request.  No other comments were received. 
 
Holte then went over slides showing the application, maps of the property and photos and
 drawings of the property. 
 
Holte stated that staff is recommending approval of the CUP with the following conditions: 
 a. Any newly created lot shall conform to all PCZO lot size requirements. 
 b. Any new building or structure shall require a land use/zoning permit and shall  
  meet all PCZO setbacks. 
 c. The site shall be properly fenced. 
 
Vonasek asked if there will be scheduled inspections of the lines and connections, and where the 
 findings are reported.  Jordan Pulkrabek (Viking Gas) said that the lines will be hydro-
 tested from Angus to Ada in 2017.  They lines are already inspected annually by Greater  

MN Gas.  
 
Yell asked what the height of the fence would be.  J. Pulkrabek said it would be eight to ten feet. 
 
Powers asked what the operating pressure and the age of the pipe are.  J. Pulkrabek said the pipes 
 are run at 877 operating pressure, and the pipe was constructed in approximately 1960.   
 
Franks made a motion to recommend approval of the CUP to the County Board with staff  
 recommendations.  Second by Wright.  All in favor. 
 
Holte said that this will go before the County Board for final approval on Tuesday April 26th,  
 2016 at 9:20 a.m. 
 
 



Public Hearing: CUP       Viking Gas Transmission Company Parcel #21.00119.00 
 
Powers read the notice, waiving the full legal description, and turned the hearing over to Holte. 
 
Holte stated that the applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct a public 

utility structure in the agricultural district in Section 32 of Fanny Township.  
 
Holte read the PCZO Sections 12.6200 through 12.6205 that pertains to this request. 
 
Holte went over the pertinent facts and stated that the property is currently 160 acres, but will be
 split into a 1.5 acre parcel if the CUP is approved.  The applicant has submitted 
 supplemental information with routes and details of the proposed station.  Viking Gas 
 Transmission Company has entered into a business agreement with Greater MN Gas to 
 supply them with guaranteed volumes of natural gas.  Purchasing the two new meter sites 
 is part of that business agreement.   
 
Holte stated that the two sites will provide Viking Gas with two sites to transfer custody of gas 
 from Viking Gas to Greater MN Gas.  From there, Greater MN Gas will provide natural 
 gas to its customers that will feed Beltrami, Fertile, and Red Lake Falls. Viking Gas 
 Transmission Company has agreed upon purchase agreements in place to acquire a 1.5  
 acre parcel for the meter station.  The Greater MN Gas routes have already been 
 established using the road right of way utility corridor.  The routes were received from 
 Greater MN Gas.  No CUP is required for the installation of new lines.   
 
Holte stated that the proposed station will be placed along the applicant’s existing natural gas 
 line.  This site will have one building to house instruments that meter gas flow to Greater 
 MN Gas and customers.  There will be above-ground piping and a power pole to provide 
 electricity.  This station will be the start of a line that will be installed to provide natural 
 gas service for the community of Red Lake Falls.  A 100’ by 100’ area of the 1.5 acre 
 parcel will be fenced off with an eight foot by ten foot security fence and locked gate.  
 The plan is to minimize the footprint and allow farming operations on the remainder of 
 the 1.5 acre property.  
 
Holte said that Richard Sanders, County Highway Engineer, stated that he has no concerns with 
 the proposed request as long as all the required setbacks are met in case the county road 
 would ever require improvement.  
 
Holte then went over slides showing the application, maps of the property and photos and
 drawings of the property. 
 
Holte stated that staff is recommending approval of the CUP with the following conditions: 
 a. Any newly created lot shall conform to all PCZO lot size requirements. 
 b. Any new building or structure shall require a land use/zoning permit and shall  
  meet all PCZO setbacks. 
 c. The site must be properly fenced and secured. 
 



Gagner asked how big the line is that feeds towns.  J. Pulkrabek said the line is two inches in 
 diameter.   
 
Powers asked how often the meters are read at these stations, and where the nearest technician is 
 located from the site.  J. Pulkrabek said the meters are read every month, with the 
 technician located within fifteen minutes of the site.   
 
Pulkrabek asked why the meters are read.  Powers said it is to regulate pressure. 
 
Yell asked if the light pole would be illuminated at all times or only at night.  J. Pulkrabek said it 
 would remain on at all times.   
 
Diedrich made a motion to recommend approval of the CUP to the County Board with staff  
 recommendations.  Second by Franks.  All in favor. 
 
Holte said that this will go before the County Board for final approval on Tuesday April 26th,  
 2016 at 9:20 a.m.   
 
Public Hearing:  CUP                 Derek Skalsky                 Parcel #61.00098.00 
 
Powers read the notice, waiving the full legal description, and turned the hearing over to Holte. 
 
Holte stated that the applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to operate a dog 
 kennel business within the agricultural zoning district in Section 11 of Rosebud 
 Township.  
 
Holte read the PCZO Sections 13.7010 subparts a. through d. that pertain to this request.  
 
Holte went over the pertinent facts and stated that the applicant would like to operate a boarding 
 business with up to 25 kennels.  The applicant owns a 10.41 acres parcel located in 
 section 11 of Rosebud Township.  The proposed kennel would be located over 1,000 feet 
 from the nearest residence other than the applicant’s home on the site.  There are eight 
 homes located within ½ mile of the applicant’s property.  The applicant plans to run a 
 dog boarding facility that provides day care and overnight care for clients’ pets when they 
 are out of town or at work during the day.  The applicant plans to build a 30’ by 30’ 
 building and will have a 30 dog capacity that will include an outdoor, fenced-in play area.  
 The outdoor play area will be around 2,000 square feet.  
 
Holte stated that the applicant also plans to offer obedience training.  If the business thrives, the 
 applicant plans to add additional kennels along with a dog bathing and grooming area.  
 They would also provide outdoor kennels with runs so clients would have the option to 
 board their dogs outside.  The business may also carry retail items such as dog food, 
 leashes, collars, dog beds, toys, etc.  If additional kennels are necessary, the applicant 
 would plan to add another fenced in play area to accommodate more dogs.   
 



Holte stated that the applicant plans to provide water and septic to the new building.  A new 
 septic design would be required before any permit would be issued.  The septic system 
 will need to meet all local and state requirements.   
 
No comments have been received on the proposed request. 
 
Holte went over slides showing the application, a letter from the applicant, maps of the property, 
 and photos of the property. 
 
Holte stated that staff is recommending approval of the CUP with the following conditions: 
 a. An operational plan be submitted and kept on file with Polk County.  
 b. Applicant will be limited to a maximum of 30 boarding dogs on the property at 
  any given time. 
 c. If the applicant wishes to expand in the future, the applicant will be required to  
  apply for a new/amended Conditional Use Permit at that time. 
 d.  Any sign for the business shall not be located within the right-of-way and shall be  
  no larger than 32 square feet in size.  
 e.  Any designated inspection officer or law enforcement officer of the County shall 
  have the right to enter, inspect, and search the kennel during business hours to  
  ensure compliance with the provisions of any county ordinance or condition  
  placed upon the permit, as well as state and federal laws and regulations. 
 f.  The Conditional Use Permit shall be subject to annual administrative review.  
 
Skalsky added that part of the proposed business will include traveling up to 50 miles to pick up  
 dogs for clients.   
 
Gagner wanted to clarify that this request is for boarding of dogs only, rather than also breeding.  
 Skalsky verified that this request is only to initiate dog boarding because there is a little 
 more liability in dog breeding.   
 
Vonasek asked if this request will also encompass dog training.  Skalsky said that some entry-
 level obedience training may occur.  
 
Kerry Winkelmann, representing Rosebud Township, asked if this operation would be similar to 
 that of a “pound”.  Skalsky said no.  Each client will be required to provide veterinary 
 papers proving vaccination records.  The clients will be required to submit information 
 regarding their dog’s temperament as well.  Skalsky reassured that he would not take in a 
 dog he was not able to handle.   
 
Winkelmann commented that it looks like there are a lot of trees around the proposed building  

site that should aid in minimizing noise.  Skalsky added that they plan to implement 
 techniques to minimize barking such as having a radio playing and suggesting clients to 
 leave a t-shirt with the dog for a familiar scent.   
 



Yell asked if the kennels would be constructed in a way that would allow the dogs to go from
 inside to outside throughout the day.  Skalsky said that may be an alteration in the future,
 but not at this time.  For now, the dogs will have a separate running yard. 
 
Jore made a motion to recommend approval of the CUP to the County Board with staff 
 conditions.  Second by Wright.  All in favor. 
 
Phillips asked if there is a “sunset clause” tied to this request.  Holte said that all Conditional Use 
 Permits in Polk County have a sunset clause because it is specified that way in the 
 Ordinance.  Phillips asked if the CUP will be tied along with the property.  Holte said that 
 all CUP’s are associated with the property rather than to the applicant.   
 
Holte said that this will go before the County Board for final approval on Tuesday April 26th,  
 2016 at 9:20 a.m.   
 
Public Hearing:  CUP            Donald & JoAnn Andringa                Parcel #74.00549.00 
 
Powers read the notice, waiving the full legal description, and turned the hearing over to Holte. 
 
Holte stated that the applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to build a 28’ by 48’ 
 (1,344 square foot) accessory structure on a riparian lot located less than 300 feet from 
 the OHW in the Shoreland District.   
 
Holte read the PCZO Sections 18.2225 (E) and (F) that pertain to this request. 
 
Holte went over the pertinent facts and stated that the applicants own a riparian lot at Union 
 Lake.  The lot is 76,000 square feet in size.  The applicants would like to build a 1,344 
 square foot accessory structure for a shop/storage.  The applicants would like to have a 
 small bathroom and floor drains in the building.  The applicants plan to install a holding 
 tank for the garage.  The applicants will need to get a septic design submitted before the 
 building permit application is approved.  The applicants will be required to complete and 
 record a “no guesthouse waiver” before the building permit is issued.   
 
Holte stated that the structure is proposed to be approximately 285 feet from the OHW.  The 
 structure is proposed to be 20 feet from the right-of-way, and 10 feet from the property 
 line.  The applicants would like to have a 6-12 pitch on the roof to match their new home.  
 Because of the pitch of the roof, the applicants are applying for a variance to exceed the 
 15-foot height limitation.  A variance would need to be approved by the Board of 
 Adjustment in order to exceed the 15-foot height limitation.  The proposed structure 
 would be 17’ ¾”.  The applicants currently have an 8’ by 12’ shed and a small concrete 
 pump/boathouse (~8’ by 10’) on the property.   
 
The applicants are building a new home on the property, and they received a variance extension 
 last year for that project.  A variance was required for the house since there is a 
 guesthouse already on the property.     
 



Holte said that Stephanie Klamm, MN DNR Area Hydrologist, stated that if the County approves  
this application, the DNR would recommend the following conditions: 

 
a. Not allow more than 25% of a lot covered by impervious surface with the new 

accessory structure or future buildings. 
b. The accessory structure meets all requirements of the Polk County Shoreland 

Ordinance. 
c. The accessory structure meets the height restrictions of 15 feet unless a variance 

request is approved. 
d. No living/sleeping quarters or kitchen facilities shall be added to the structure in the 

future 
 

Holte then read the entire comment letter from Klamm. 
 
Holte said that comments have been received by neighbors, Kurt and Joyce Eickhof, stating that 
 they would be unable to attend the hearing.  Kurt stated in an email that, “I oppose the  

building of this structure.  Please let the Andringa’s know that I am willing to work with 
them at finding an amendable solution for their garage structure.” 

 
Holte then read the entire comment letter that was submitted by the Eickhofs. 
 
Holte then went over slides showing the application, maps,  and photos of the site, and the design  

sketch.  
 

Holte stated that staff is recommending approval of the CUP with the following conditions: 
 

1) No guesthouse uses – applicants shall have furnished evidence of having recorded  
 the signed guesthouse waiver with the property deed before the building permit is  
  issued.  

2) The applicants shall submit a septic design before the building permit is issued.  
3) No future development shall be allowed on the lot that would exceed the 25%   

 impervious surface requirement.  (This shall include sidewalks, patios, pavers,  
  etc.) 

4) The applicants shall maintain adequate vegetative screening between the 1,344   
 square foot structure and the OHW for Union Lake.  

5) The applicants shall plant and maintain adequate vegetative screening between the  
 1,344 square foot accessory structure and the westerly property line.  

6) The small concrete shed/boathouse shall be removed by 4/26/2017 and the   
 applicants shall be limited to a maximum of two accessory structures on the  
  property with a maximum total square footage of 1,600 square feet.  

7) The applicants must receive a variance from the Board of Adjustment in order to   
 exceed the 15-foot height requirement for the new garage.   

 



Gagner verified that Kurt was the individual opposing the garage.  D. Andringa clarified that 
 Kurt had told him that he did not like the idea of seeing a large wall when driving into his 
 driveway. 
 
Pulkrabek mentioned that his main concern was to make sure setbacks could be obtained. 
 
Phillips asked for clarification on the conditions requiring vegetative screening. Holte said that 
 the condition has been left fairly vague and the discretion would be left up to PCPZ staff. 
 
Vonasek commented that there is only a ten-foot strip to plant a vegetative screening.  That will 
 not allow for very sufficient vegetation.   
 
Deidrich mentioned that is the job of the board to determine the validity of any potential 
 complaints.  
 
Melbye asked who determines if the vegetative screening is adequate.  Holte said that would be 
 determined by the Polk County Planning & Zoning staff.  
 
Deidrich made a motion to recommend approval of the CUP to the County Board with staff 
 conditions.  Second by Pulkrabek.   
 
Gagner did not think the screening requirement needed to be left as a condition on the westerly  

property line.  Pulkrabek commented that the neighbor could also provide their own 
screening.  

 
Deidrich amended the motion to recommend approval of the CUP to the County Board with staff 
 recommendations, excluding condition #5.  Second by Pulkrabek.  All in favor. 
 
Holte said that this will go before the County Board for final approval on Tuesday April 26th,  
 2016 at 9:20 a.m.   
 
With no other business to come before the Planning Commission the meeting was adjourned by  
 Powers. 


